
Parkside  Station Approach  Burton Street  Melton Mowbray  Leicestershire  LE13 1GH
01664 502502 * contactus@melton.gov.uk * www.melton.gov.uk * @MeltonBC

Agenda
Meeting name Meeting of the Scrutiny Committee
Date Tuesday, 23 June 2020
Start time 6.30 pm
Venue This meeting will be held by remote access - 

details below
Other information This meeting is open to the public

Members of the Scrutiny Committee are invited to attend the above meeting 
to consider the following items of business.

Edd de Coverly
Chief Executive

Membership

Councillors P. Cumbers (Chair) R. Bindloss (Vice-Chair)
R. Browne R. Child
J. Douglas C. Evans
C. Fisher E. Holmes
R. Smedley J. Wilkinson

Quorum:  5 Councillors

Meeting enquiries Catherine Richards
Email democracy@melton.gov.uk
Agenda despatched Monday, 15 June 2020

Public Document Pack



Page 2 of 2

No. Item Page No.

REMOTE MEETING JOINING INSTRUCTIONS
Remote meeting arrangements
 
Meeting Participants :
 
Zoom video conferencing webinar:
An invitation will be sent to Members for this meeting
 
Public Access :
 
You Tube:
The meeting will be available to view here

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

2.  MINUTES
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 3 March 2020.

1 - 6

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Members to declare any interest as appropriate in respect of items to 
be considered at this meeting.

7 - 8

4.  REVIEW OF THE SCRUTINY ANNUAL WORK PLAN AND THE 
FORWARD PLAN
The Scrutiny Workplan will be discussed and developed at the 
Scrutiny Workshop in July – date to be confirmed.

5.  RECOVERY PRESENTATION

1 Recovery and the Corporate Strategy  (5 Mins)
2 Recovery Introduction (5 Mins)
2.1 Financial Impacts of Covid-19 (5 Mins)
2.2 Recovery and Priority themes:

a.Helping People to Recover (priority 1 and 2) Impacts and 
Response – Director Presentation and Views/Scrutiny 
Feedback (35 Mins)

b.Shaping Places in Recovery (priority 3 and 4)Impacts and 
Response – Director Presentation and Views/Scrutiny 
Feedback (35 Mins)

c. Great Council:  Community Focused Recovery (priority 5 and 
6) Impacts and Response – Director Presentation and 
Views/Scrutiny Feedback (35 Mins)

To follow.

6.  URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any other items that the Chair considers urgent

https://youtu.be/7RvMJW-iAho
https://youtu.be/7RvMJW-iAho


1 Scrutiny Committee : 030320

Minutes

Present:

Chair Councillor P. Cumbers (Chair)

Councillors R. Bindloss (Vice-Chair) R. Browne
R. Child J. Douglas
C. Evans C. Fisher
E. Holmes R. Smedley
J. Wilkinson

In Attendance A. Pearson, Portfolio Holder for Housing & Communities

Officers Deputy Chief Executive & Director for People & Communities
Director for Governance and Regulatory Services
Democratic Services Manager
Housing and Communities Lead
People Manager
Housing and Neighbourhoods Manager
Neighbourhood Support Officer (Community Safety)
Democratic Services Officer (HA)

Inspector Audrey Danvers
Mrs Ann Reader

Meeting name Scrutiny Committee
Date Tuesday, 3 March 2020
Start time 6.30 pm
Venue Parkside, Station Approach, Burton Street, 

Melton Mowbray, Leicestershire. LE13 1GH

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



2 Scrutiny Committee : 030320

Minute 
No.

Minute

47 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence received for this meeting.

48 MINUTES
The minutes of the meeting held on 21 January 2020 were approved and 
authorised to be signed by the Chair.

49 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
Councillor Pearson declared an interest in any items relating to Leicestershire 
County Council, due to his role as a County Councillor.

Councillor Browne declared for transparency that his wife, Lucie Browne, is also in 
attendance at the meeting.

50 REVIEW OF THE SCRUTINY ANNUAL WORK PLAN AND THE FORWARD 
PLAN
During the discussion the following points were noted:

The Chair introduced Mrs Ann Reader who will be delivering the Scrutiny Training 
on 12 March 2020. Mrs Reader has nearly 30 years of experience in local 
government as an elected member, member of the leadership and cabinet of a 
London borough, a local and national officer and a consultant supporting 
councillors’ learning and development. 

Workplan

 The Chair advised that there will be a Scrutiny Workshop held in early May 
2020 to review the Workplan for 2020/21 and prioritise items which are currently 
listed at ‘Pending’. Members will also be able to consider any additional items at 
this Workshop.

 The Chair agreed that there are a lot of items still to be addressed by Scrutiny, 
however, as this is the last meeting of Scrutiny Committee before the Annual 
Meeting in May 2020 should Members have any particular concerns about any 
items on the Workplan they can start their own investigations and gather 
evidence ready for putting together the Workplan for 2020-21.  This can be 
done individually or in groups. 

 Members agreed that it would be beneficial to have input from members of the 
public and organisations to understand what is required by the public.  

 The Chair advised herself, the Scrutiny Officer and Vice Chair will be working 
with Cabinet to establish the plan for 2020-21.

Forward Plan 

  ‘Asset Disposal’, is now showing as part exempt on the Forward Plan as this is 
Page 2



3 Scrutiny Committee : 030320

a standing item on the Plan, should there be assets for sale then the item would 
have to have 28 days notice. There are currently no assets for sale.

51 QUESTIONS TO THE PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR HOUSING AND 
COMMUNITIES
Councillor A Pearson, Portfolio Holder for Housing and Communities provided a 
presentation setting out current performance, focus and challenges for the portfolio.

During the discussion of the presentation the following points were noted:

 Cllr Pearson thanked the Scrutiny Committee for their intervention into the voids 
process and the excellent results that have come from this in regard to health 
and safety of electrical, gas, water, asbestos and fire safety and in working with 
the Regulator the council has managed to solve these problems. 

 267 site visits to properties for health and safety checks have taken place out of 
272 properties, though it is hoped that all properties will be checked by the end 
of March, unfortunately, some tenants will not allow the workmen access to their 
properties.

 All asbestos surveys are due to be completed by March 2020.
 Council properties no longer have coal fires, these were all removed about 15 

years ago.
 The overall value of council housing stock is £68m.
 Mrs Rahman, People Manager handed out 3 case studies which showed the 

importance of the Me and My Learning service and how intervention can make 
such a difference with support for education, finances, employment, interaction. 
Concern was given to the closure of the Sure Start Centres and the impact it 
has had.

 Mrs Rahman advised of that there was currently in progress a ‘Pre Tenancy 
Course’ booklet which is being circulated to existing tenants, this covers 
everything that a tenant will need from responsibilities, home maintenance, rent, 
tax support, how to end a tenancy, how to claim recharges, compensation, 
cleaning, how to report  and deal with Anti Social Behaviour, financial tips, 
debts, savings, UC, online services, direct debits, paying bills etc. 

o This leaflet will be emailed to Scrutiny when it is finished.

 Due to the slow turn around of void properties, the costs of B&Bs had 
increased.

 Councillor Pearson agreed to email members details on how many social 
properties were being made available to the council in the next 12 months 
including the number of supported units. Information was also requested about 
how the properties are going to be matched to peoples’ needs, as a high 

Page 3



4 Scrutiny Committee : 030320

percentage of those people accepted as homeless have very complex 
needs/mental health issues.

 Councillor Pearson advised that the Director for Growth and Regeneration had 
a presentation about options to the development of Melton Mowbray and he will 
request a copy of this be sent out to Scrutiny members.

 Mention was made to the ‘People Move Programme’ which comprises of 
involvement with schools, GP referrals, park walks, coordinated walks, people 
with health issues follow a programme.  

 It was clarified that ‘active people’ are classed as those who had more than 150 
minutes of physical activity a week; inactive are those who undertook less than 
30 minutes of activity a week.

 Students at Longfield Academy completed the Safer Melton Partnership 
Community Safety Consultation about concerns facing students of incidents in 
the neighbourhood, sadly drugs and knife crime were top of the list.

52 UPDATE AND STATISTICS REGARDING CRIME AND DISORDER / 
COMMUNITY SAFETY
The Chair introduced Inspector Audrey Danvers who attended to provide 
information and answer questions regarding the Crime and Disorder/Community 
Safety presentation.

During the discussion of the presentation the following points were noted:

 Councillor Wilkinson asked for the minutes to show that Members were 
dissatisfied that the Police and Crime Commissioner was not formally invited to 
this meeting as was previously requested by Members at two separate Scrutiny 
Meetings.

 Inspector Danvers advised that knife crime in Melton was not excessive in 
comparison to national figures; by January 2020 there were just 7 incidents.

 Inspector Danvers advised the following burglary statistics: 
o residential 2017/18 – 183, 2018/19 175 2019/to date 116
o business 2017/18 155, 2018/19 93, 2019/to date 79

 Inspector Danvers advised that following a fluctuation in theft from motor 
vehicles mainly power tools and catalytic convertors, the police are working with 
the scrap dealers to help target those believed to be committing these crimes.

 AW advised that the Council will only use its ASB powers as a last resort.  The 
Partnership that was in place, depending on the vulnerability and priority of the 
case, will try to alleviate issues first with early intervention to persistent 
offenders to help them make better choices and to assist them to integrate into 
the community. 

 AW advised that 80% of ASB involves Melton Borough Council tenants. Thus 
strengthening the view that there needs to be stronger tenancy management 

Page 4



5 Scrutiny Committee : 030320

process, where necessary action can be taken to identify the root cause of the 
ASB. There is a stronger community engagement in priority neighbourhoods 
and the schools are engaged at the earliest opportunity.

 Following the recent Community Safety Consultation which has taken place, the 
Partnership would like Members to feedback any concerns their constituents 
have to feed into the 5 year plan to move forward to solve community issues 
and address concerns.

 Councillor Pearson spoke of the importance of early intervention following 
information provided by the Governor of Leicester Prison where 90% of the 
inmates had significant issues at school and go on to reoffend. 

 The Safer Melton Partnership meets quarterly to discuss issues. Members were 
advised they are welcome to attend, Members asked to be informed when the 
meetings are due to take place.

 Insp Danvers assured Members that there is adequate resources and additional 
support available for tackling drug crime and alcohol issues in Melton; there 
have been 3 warrants issued in the last month and more people are being 
stopped and searched and arrested.

 The Deputy Chief Executive provide the link to Safer Communities Performance 
which showed the comparison of crime in Melton  to other authorities in 
Leicestershire this shows Melton has the 2nd lowest crime rates per 1000.

53 SCRUTINY ANNUAL REPORT
The Chair provided the following introduction to the report:

“The Scrutiny Annual Report is considered good practice and is an excellent 
opportunity to highlight the work of the Committee through the year and also report 
on outcomes and proposals for improvement for the coming Municipal Year.  

I hope that you will agree that we have developed a sound foundation for the work 
of Scrutiny in our inaugural year; working collaboratively with Cabinet; challenging 
in an open and constructive way; developing relationships with officers; and 
maintaining an outcomes-based focus on improving delivery of services to our 
community.

There is still much to do, the report details some proposals for the coming year and 
we will also continue to self-evaluate and respond to feedback on how we can 
improve and develop.  

I hope that you will support the recommendation to present the report to Council so 
that we can continue to highlight the work of our committee and increase the profile 
of Scrutiny across the Council and externally.

During the discussion the following points were noted:

 It was agreed that a protocol for Scrutiny Members and Officers would be 
useful. 

 Members agreed that officers needed to work more closely with Scrutiny and to 
provide the information that is requested from them.  

Page 5

https://public.tableau.com/views/LeicestershireSaferCommunitiesDashboard/LeicsSaferDashboard?:embed=y&:showVizHome=no


6 Scrutiny Committee : 030320

 The Scrutiny officer will chase up any information requested from officers 2 
weeks before agenda dispatch. 

 An action list can follow each meeting.

Members all voted in favour of the Scrutiny Annual Report going to Cabinet.  

54 URGENT BUSINESS

The meeting closed at: 9.00 pm

Chair

Page 6



Advice on Members’ Interests
COUNCIL MEETINGS - COMMITTEE MINUTES : DECLARATION OF INTERESTS
Interests need not be declared at Full Council in relation to Committee Minutes which do not 
become the subject of debate at Full Council (i.e. Minutes referred to solely on a page by page 
basis when working through the Minutes of each Committee.)

An interest must be declared at Full Council as soon as it becomes apparent that a  relevant 
Committee Minute is to be debated – this applies even if an interest has been declared at 
Committee and is recorded in the Minutes of that Committee.  

PERSONAL AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS
If the issue being discussed affects you, your family or a close associate more than other 
people in the area, you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest.  You also have a personal  
interest if the issue relates to an interest you must register under paragraph 9 of the Members’ 
Code of Conduct.

You must state that you have a personal and non-pecuniary interest and the nature of 
your interest.  You may stay, take part and vote in the meeting.

PERSONAL AND PECUNIARY INTERESTS
If a member of the public, who knows all the relevant facts, would view your personal interest in 
the issue being discussed to be so great that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of the public 
interest and it affects your or the other person or bodies’ financial position or relates to any 
approval, consent, licence, permission or registration then you must state that you have a 
pecuniary interest, the nature of the interest and you must leave the room*.  You must not 
seek improperly to influence a decision on that matter unless you have previously obtained a 
dispensation from the Authority’s Governance Committee.  

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS AND OTHER INTERESTS
If you are present at any meeting of the Council and you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest in any matter to be considered or being considered at the meeting, if the interest 
is not already registered, you must disclose the interest to the meeting.  You must not 
participate in the discussion or the vote and you must leave the room.

You may not attend a meeting or stay in the room as either an Observer Councillor or *Ward 
Councillor or as a member of the public if you have a pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary 
interest*.  

BIAS 
If you have been involved in an issue in such a manner or to such an extent that the public are 
likely to perceive you to be biased in your judgement of the public interest (bias) then you 
should not take part in the decision-making process; you should leave the room.  You should 
state that your position in this matter prohibits you from taking part.  You may request 
permission of the Chair to address the meeting prior to leaving the room.  The Chair will need to 
assess whether you have a useful contribution to make or whether complying with this request 
would prejudice the proceedings.  A personal, pecuniary or disclosable pecuniary interest will 
take precedence over bias. 

In each case above, you should make your declaration at the beginning of the meeting or as 
soon as you are aware of the issue being discussed.*

*There are some exceptions – please refer to paragraphs 3.12(2) and 3.12(3) of the Code of 
Conduct

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 MINUTES
	3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

